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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have andifed the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2021, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under thosc Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant (o our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Fthics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors i3 responsiblc for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
ithTe - arati : Sfimamciat st 5 iveatrue and fair view of The
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;
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(2) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2021;

: , | I o to-be_inehded-int litor's Resort in-accord n
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 2.24 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
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UDIN: 21102328 AAAACZ5642 ERRZS

Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 22 May 2021
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements
of KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

Re: KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited ("the Company')

Q) a)
b)
c)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

vii) a)
b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

All Property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name
of the company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.
There was no inventory lying with third parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented
upon.

The Company has™hot accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the medical and healthcare services,
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service
tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to duty of
customs, sales-tax, service tax and duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, goods and service tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

(viii)

(ix)

()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a
financial institution, bank. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from
government or debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt
instruments. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
term loans taken by the company and applied during the period were for the purpose for
which they were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the Ind AS financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the company has not paid or provided any remuneration to managerial
person during the period under audit. Therefore, the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of sec 177 are not
applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it
relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company
and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
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per Navneet Rai Kabra i ACCOUPJ_fANTGI. 1
Partner :--& /_(_'_J_. : /’
Membership Number: 102328 ENEOTTTO
UDIN: 21102328 AAAACZ5642 s

Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 22 May 2021
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Annexure 2 to The Independent Auditor’s Report Of Even Date On The Ind AS Financial
Statements Of KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements of
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements was estabdished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements.

/ /QJ, /
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of ﬁnancial reporting and the

]J[CI.h « .

accounting prmcuples A company's mtemal fi nanc1al controls w1th reference to these Ind AS ﬁnanmal
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

ow- o
amut— &' |\ — 7 \
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Partner /
Membership Number: 102328 Xt
UDIN: 21102328AAAACZ5642 '
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 22 May 2021
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KIMS Hospital Kurnnol Privaie Limited
CIN: GASTINAP20120171 COR3863
Balunce sheet as 41 31 March 2020
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Current assels
Inventories 235 11.96 9.8
Finaucial asse(s
(i) Trade receivables 26 4875 2].25
{if) Cash and cash equivalems 27 1.5% 047
(iii} Loans 22(b) 200 0.48
(iv) Other financial asscis 2.3(b) 5.27 201
Otlier cument assets 29 lug 429
Total curren( asséts 3.9 3843
Total assets 530,20 527.02
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equily share eapital 2,10 (a) 60.00 s0.8
Otlrer equity 240 (k) {226.90) (175.07)
Tolal equity (166.94) (1507)
LIABILITIES
Non-cucreat tiabilitics
Financial liabilities
{i) Borowings 211 514,77 425.53
(ii) Other financia) Fiabilitics 242 ¢a) 230 -
Provisions 213 U6s 0.71
Total con-current labilities - 514.72 R 177
Current Ifabilifies
Financial liabilities
(i) Bomowings 214 28.93 242
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Tolal outstanding ducs of wicro enferprises and simall entemprises; aud 21s 0.86 ¢
(b} Tolal oustanding dues of creditors other than micm enterprises 215 8141 59.36
and small enterprises
(i) Othier financial ligbilitics 212 (b) 71.32 95.02
Provisions 216 336 1.729
Other eurrent liahilities 217 5.50 73
Total curvent Nabilitics 19133 21588
Total equity and liabllities 539,24 27.02
Significatt accounting policies B

The accompanying notes referred (o above fonn an intepral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per aur report attached of even date.

for S.R.Batiboi & Associates LLI
Chartered Accountams
ICAL Fion Regisimtion no.: 1010497 300004

Partnere
Membershiop noc 102328

PMace: Hyderabal
Darer 32 May 2021

Jor ard on behinlf of the oard of Divectors of
KIMS Jlospital Kurnol Private Limited

CIN: USSTIOAP2012F | ()

e

Manoging Director
DIN: 17252445

Place; Hydeabad
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Date: 22 May 2021
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Emplayee benelils expense 221 108.93 §2.44
Finance costs 222 57.87 5047
Depreciation and mmortisation expense 21 2.7% 32.60
Odice expenses 223 256 90 246.16
‘Tatal cxpenses _S§76.24 503.15
Laoss before 1ax expense {51.78) (9333)
Tax expense

- Defenred 1ax expensc/(credit) (.01 0.07)
Totdl tax expense 0.01 0.07)
Loss for the year (A} = (51.79) (9326)
Qthar contprehiensive income / (loss) .

Trems that will not be reclassified subscqueatly 1o profit and loss

- Re-measurcinenl {JossVgain on defined benelit plans (0.05) 0.26
- Incomie Lax eflecy 0.0t 0.07)
Oher comprehensive (inssy [ncome, net of (ax (B) (0.04) 019
Total comprehensive loss for the year (A+B) (51.83) (93.07)
Eaming per share (Tace value of share INR 10 cach) 227

- Busic (8.63) (15.54)
- Diluted {8.03) (15.54)
Significant sceountig policies - 1.3

‘T accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statenens,

As per our report auaclied of even date.

for S.R.Batlihol & Associales LLP
Chartered Accountants
1€’ Al Finn Regisiration ao.: 101049W7 F300004

pﬂiﬂﬁﬁh I Q) ‘ ,/"‘

Partner
Menbership no.: 102328

Place: flyskerabad
ate: 22 May 2021

for and oit behalf af the Board of Directors of

KIMS 1lospital Kurnool Private Linited
CIN: US5T10AP20L2PTCOR3865

1

\
Dr. It \%ﬁr

Managing Dircclor
INN; MT28Z145

Place: Hyderabad
Dalc: 22 May 2021
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KNS Haospital Kuinool Private ) indied
CIN: URSHUAPZOIZP EC 083863

Statement of changes io equity fur the sear ended 3 Sanceh 2021
Al anouatz: wrese nallion of Iicbian Rupwes s except sune dats onunless vthers o soited

#4) Equity sture tapital

Fomnity sharis ol ids 10 van . e ilicd sl Aol sl Snbwikind
ACT Aprit 2019 o (000 A
Add: Shares issued during the wear . S ~ -
A3 March 2020 6,000,000 olLG0
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= et — confribution — -}
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Lussa for the year (5179 . [EIWL)]
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[Balance as a1 A1 March 2021 1 (239.43) 12.53 (226.90)
Panticulacs Other eguity Total of Other equity
Teserve sl surplus
Retained earnings Capl(al
catitribution
Ralimee ag al | Agwil 2009 {94.53) (94.53)
Lavss ooy i year (93.26) - 93.26)
Guarahlee comntasion - 12,52 12.52
Remeasurenment of defined bepelit hability (nedoftpx) | 019 | - 0.19
Italance as at 31 March 2020 1187.60) 12.83 (175.01)

"I'lie accompanying notes referted (0 above forn an integral par of the Ind AS tinancial stateinents.

As per aur report attached of even date,

for §.R.Batliboi & Assoclates LLP
Chantered Accountants

1ICAL Fimma Regisication no.: 101049W; EA0DOD4

A
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per Navneel Hal Kabra

Panner
Meubership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Daie: 22 May 2021

Jor and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
KIMS IHaospital Kdrnoal Private Limited
CIN: LiBSE 1UAP2012P TCORI86S

\ud-
Dr. Rafif Ahnied

Managing Director L7 SN
DIN: 07257445 NI o8 T3
Place: Hyderabad

Daie: 22 May 2021
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Inderest income {0 12) .
Tnterest on incame tax refund .15) (0.06)
Finanee costs e 56.14 49.00
Operating cash fluws before working capital changes 45.12 (7.90)
Adjusinents lor:
Increas¢ in irade reneivables (34.84) (14 80
Increase in inveniones (213) (508
bixreasc in loans aad other assels (4.34) 0. 75)
Iucrease in Habilitics and provisions 16.47 24,04
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Tncome-mxes paid, net of refund (5.83) (3.58)
Ned cash flow genevated from/(used in) uperafing activifies (A) 1445 (14.05)
11. Cash flows from investiug activities
Acquisition of property. plant and equipment and jntangible ass¢ts (47.%6) (12zsn
Proceeds fram salé of fixed asscls 01 .
hivesunent in hank deposits (having original maturity of more than three mouths) E e (GIOY
Rental inconse .70 [{E]]
Interest received 011 (L
Nef cash used in lnvesting activities (B) (40.55) 122.74)
111, Cash ftows from financing activities
Repayment of long-ierm borrowings (112,10 {294.33)
Receipis from long-tenm borrowings 227,50 487.50
Repayment of short-tern bormowings (net) (23.49) (18.79)
Finance costs (58.45) (Al.06)
Net cash flows gencrated (rom financing activitles (C) V46 310
Nel iucreasc/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 1.o6 @.0on
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 047 454
Cash and cash cquivalents at (he end of the year LS 47

Note:

a) The statcmeni of cash flows has been preparcd ander the "lndirect Method” as set out in the Indian accounting Standand (hul 7)-Statement of cash Maws:

b) Cash and cash equivalents compriscs of:

Cash on band
Balances wilth banks
- On cament accounts
Teotal

Far the yrar ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
.81 040
n72 0oy
153 047

The accompanying aotes referred to above form an integral part of (he lid AS financial stalements,

As per our report atached of cven date.
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KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Company Overview

KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited (‘the Company') is a private company domiciled in India and is

incorporated on 29 October 2012 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 in India. The registered
office of the Company is located at P.No: 27 & 28 Sy No 931/J1&2B, Joharapuram Road, Kurnool, Andhra
Pradesh - 518002.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 22 May 2021.
1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

a) Statement of Compliances:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under
section 133 of Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value or Amortised cost

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data and
per share data, unless otherwise stated.

d) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of Company’s financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have

made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

L




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amounts are in million of Indian Rupces except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various cuslomer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of
forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Refer Note 2.25 - Measurement
of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining
maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

e




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)
e) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based current and non-current
classification,

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

1. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal
operating cycle;

il. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

1. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

1i. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

f) Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an

asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

.




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurenient as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis,
the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee and
the Company's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the
valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting

period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in
measuring fair values is included in Note 2.31 — financial instruments.

Le




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.3  Significant accounting policies

A. Revenue from contract with customer

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services
and sale of pharmacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitied in
exchange for those goods or services.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. The
performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery, medical/clinical
professional services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration adjusted for
components of variable consideration which constitutes discounts, estimated disallowances and any other
rights and obligations as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected
from customers and deposited back to the respective statutory authorities. Revenue is recognised at the
point in time for the outpatient hospital services when the related services are rendered at the transaction
price. With respect to the inpatients hospital services who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the
balance sheet date, revenue is recognised over the period to the extent of services rendered.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy (other than hospital services), where the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Company applies the most likely amount method or the expected value method to estimate the variable
consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration
is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount
is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value method is used for
those with more than one volume threshold. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining
estimates in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction
price and recognised as revenue.

Contract balances

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients
who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet
date.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.
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KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.c., transfers control of the related goods or
services 1o the customer).

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is recorded
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the statement of profit and loss.

B. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except
to the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and

interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available LI_!;iliHSl which the deductible lemporary differences, and the Carry forward

of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

C. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, borrowing costs, if the
recognition criteria are met, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for
its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it located.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its intended use,
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company de-recognises the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own associated useful life
and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised n
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are de-recognised from the financial statements upon sale
or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and Joss.
Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting
date are recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment nol ready fot intended
use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

De recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-
recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the item is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets as estimated by
the management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has estimated the
following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment which are in compliance
with the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Buildings 60

Medical and surgical equipment 13

Plant and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Fumiture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has
estimated the useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 for the following:

o Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
e Leasehold land is in the nature of perpetual lease without any limited useful life and hence is not

amortised.




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

D. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

De recognition

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:
Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Software 6

E. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.
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Notes to the financial statements for the ycar ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

F. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of Impairment of non-
financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

e
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

G. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is determined on weighted average basis. The comparison of cost and net realisable is made on an item by
item basis.

H. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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I. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
J. Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

”
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The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of

the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income
(OCI).

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes to the defined
benefit liability (asset) as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment
or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short term cash
bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of the
past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Compensated Absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Company, the employees have to utilise their eligible leave
during the financial year and lapses at the end of the financial year. Accrual towards compensated absences
at the end of the financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding leave absence at the end of
the financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The
Company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based
on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses
are immediately taken to the Statement of Profits and Losses and are not deferred. The obligations are
presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

v
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K. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of
financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient,
the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Financial assets at amortised cost
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the

requirements to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Le
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Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.

Impairment of financials assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to as ‘contractual revenue
receivables’ in these financial statements).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL..

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at
the original EIR.

ke
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilitics are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

L. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

-
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M. Earnings per share

The basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

N. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The Managing Director is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.
O. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end

of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise,
events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.




KiVis E|=n||lll| Kawms| Privete L insttel

CIN: UBS110AP2012PTCORIB65

Notes b0 the fluspcial statermenhs fur the year ended 31 March 2021
Allamounts are in million of Indian fijee ¢ wsps § crit

[} Birperty, plant wpd equipmeni

il b etated

1 ke Vres, Tl bl W Wil wnd Thant wint i Viatrival Veliiles  Farmitiss soi (R I Toralul yopenty,
A ok gt i e — Tl lani wil
irme saTiy ing amwmt
Balaper ms ut | April 2019 19724 68.66 113z 286 440 Buy nn 1175 36961
Additions 9T s 157 031 T £ 1k hid 5.0
Balance as at J1 March 2020 [T T 1725 T2 [¥T] ATHI 0y My 1759 EILET]
Balance s at | April 2020 16.00 207.02 17753 1499 ki) 4181 ne 3434 17.89 518.88
Additions 38 00s 0T oM o0 519
Dispusals NN il
Bslance as ui 31 March 2021 184,35 {2 (K11 [TEt] [T ALAK IBlE =%
1y 5.18 0.96 070 480 anpl 1ss 54 2401
Degweciali ~ L 137 102 had 210 A 1He K4T 170
Balance as at J1 March 2020 L3 1655 Ly [E1] L] e Al [TET) S4Bs
Balance an at | April 2020 669 1655 1.98 153 9.91 0.02 T4 [JK1) 5605
Deprecialion charge for the year = 3si 1436 1.08 on 530 001 kR 2% i
Dispusal B il - - - - : : )
Balancw as at J1 Murch 2021 1020 g0 3.06 m 1520 ey na LR Lihid
Carrylug amonnty (et}
At 1 March 2020 100 .33 160 9% 1o 170 A [ 58 hEey
At 3] March 2021 (i [TLXE (RS 1194 (K] RLEKT] [} 222 AM 21
2 i bistming e wavsts
Particulars Sulrwars
cxrryinz amseun
Balance m at ] Apri1 2019 059
Additions 588
Belance aa at 31 March 2020 [XT]
Balance m at 1 April 2020 644
Additions 1 0.54
Balzoes st a( 31 March 2021 1 [ AL}
Accumulsted amertisstion
Balance ss sl | Apri1 2019 059
Amortisation charge for the year 0.56
Balance as st 31 March 2020 [HES
Balance s at | April 2020 1is
Amortsation charge for the year Los
Balawcs as at 3§ March 2021 2
uawying amiunt (oet)
vk 2020 £n




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: USS110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees exceplt share data or unless othenwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

2.2 Loans (at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)

(a) Non-current
-To parties other than related parties
Security deposits 3.07 2.78
Total 3.07 2.78

(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties
Security deposits 2.00 0.48
Total 2.00 (48

2.3 Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
(unsecured, considered good)

(a) Non-current
-To parties other than related parties

Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months of reporting date*) 0.10 0.10
Interest receivable 0.01 0.00
Total 0.11 0.10

* The above deposits are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee.

(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties

Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) (refer note 2 33) 5.27 2.11

Total 5.27 .11
24 Other non-current assets

-To parties other than related parties

(unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances 1.55 1.52

Prepaid expenses 0.06 0.08

Prepaid guarantee commission 7.59 932

Total 9.20 10.93
2.5 Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Medical consumables,drug and surgical instruments 11.96 9.83

Total 11.96 9.83
2.6 Trade receivables (at amortised cost)

Unsecured

Trade receivables-Consider good 48.75 21.24

Trade receivables-credit impaired 8.83 3.79

Total receivables 57.58 25.03

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Less: Provision for impairement (8.83) 3.79)

Total Trade receivables 48.75 21.25

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any
other person, nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is
a partner, a director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
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As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2.7 Cash and bank balances
a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 08t 0.40
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 072 0.07
Total 1.53 0.47
b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars 1 April 2020 Cash flows Other 31 March 2021
Current borrowings 5242 (23.49) - 28.93
Non- current horrowings Lineluding current maturitiest 459.66 115.40 - S75.06
Tuotal liabilitics from financing activities 512.08 91.91 - 603.99
Particulars 1 April 2019 Cash flows Other 31 March 2020
Currenl borrowings 39.31 (18.79) 3190 5242
Non- current borrowings (including current maturitics) 299.97 193.17 (3348) 459.66
Total liabilities from financing activities 339.28 174.38 (1.58) 512.08
Others in borrowings includes effect of amortization cost and re-classification of borrowings.
2.8 Tax assets (net)
Non-current
Advance tax (net of provision for taxation) 12.64 6.66
Total 12.64 6.66
2.9 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to suppliers 0.98 2.16
Prepaid expenses 0.84 0.23
Staff advances 0.13 0.17
Prepaid guarantee commission 1.73 1,73
Total 3.68 4.29
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As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

2.10 (a) Equity share capital

Authorised share capital
Equity shares

6.000.000 (31 March 2020: 6,000,000) cquity shares of INR 10 cach 60.00 6000
60.00 60.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

6.000,000 (31 March 2020: 6,000.000) equily shares of INR 10 each 60.00 60.00
60.00 60.00

a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares of INR 10 each,fully paid up outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Number of Amount Number of shares Amount
At (he comsmencement of the year 6,000,000 60.00 6,000,000 60.00
Add : Shares issued during the ycar . . 3 -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 6,000,000 60.00 6,000,000 60.00

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares of INR 10 each,fully paid up:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs, 10/- each, Each equity share holder is entitled to one vote per equity share
heldIn the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company, afier
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion lo the number of equily shares held by the shareholders

¢) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares ol INR 10 each,fully paid up

Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limniled 3,300,000 55.00% 3,300,000 55.00%
Dr P Govardhan Reddy 496,000 827% 496,000 8.27%
Dr G Sudhakar 495,000 8.25% 495,000 8.25%
Dr H Abdul Naveed 495,000 8.25% 495,000 8.25%

d) Shares of the Company held by holding company

Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 3,300,000 55.00% 3,300,000 55.00%
2.10 (b) Other equity As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(A) Capital contribution (Refer Note (ii) below)

Opening balance 12.53 -
Movement during the year - 12.53
Closing balance 12.53 12.53
(B) Retained earnings (Refer Note (i) below)
Opening balance (187.60) (94.53)
Add: Loss for the year 51.79) (93.20)
Add: Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (0.04) 0.19
Closing balance (239.43) (187.60)
(226.90) (175.07)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

(i) Retained earnings

Retained eamings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has eamed/incurred Lill date, less any transfers 1o general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders, Retained eamings includes re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefil plans, net of 1axes that will not be
reclassified to Statement of Profil and Loss. Relained eamnings is a free reserve available to the Company and eligible for distribution to
shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing nel eamnings till date,

(ii) Capital contribution

Financial guaranlee conlracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time of issue of puarantee. The liability is measured at {air value and
subsequently al the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amnortisation,
where appropriate.

Where puarantee in relation Lo loans or other payables of subsidiary is provided for no coinpensation by the shareholder, fair values of such
guarantees are accounled as capilal contribution in the books of the Company.




KIMS Ilospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: USSI10AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021

Allamounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.11 Long-term borrowings (at amortised cost)

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Non-current Current* Non- current Current*
Secured
Term loans from bank
- HDFC Bank (refer note i) 436.17 6329 378.03 34.13
Total loans from bank R 436.17 63.29 378.03 34.13
Unsecured
Loans from related parties (refer note ii) 75.60 - 4750 -
Total unsecured loans 75.60 - 47.50 -
Total S11.77 63.29 425.53 34.13

Notes:
*Refer current maturities of long tenn debts under note 2.12 (b) Other financial liabilities

i) Tenn loan - | from HDFC Bank is secured by way of equitable mortgage on the property situated at Plot Nos 27 & 28 (part) in Sy.No.931/J1B
931/J2B,931/15B,931/KIB and 931/K3 of kallur,Johrapuram Road,Kurmool and first and exclusive first charge on movable and immovable assets
and current assets of the Company. Further, the loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited.
The loan consists of different facilities wherein repayments term ranges between 60 to 104 months and the last instalment in the said facilities is due
in April 2028. The loan carries an interest rate of 1Y MCLR+ 1.10% (spread) per annum (31 March 2020 : 1Y MCLR+ 1.10% (spread) per

annuim)

New terin loan taken during the year from HDFC has repayment term of 48 months and the last instalment in the said facilities is due in July 2025.
The loan carries an interest rate of 1Y MCLR+ 0.50% (spread) per annum (31 March 2020 : Nil). The loan is secured by way of extension of
Second ranking charge over existing primary and collateral securities including Mortagages created in favour of HDFC Bank

i) The Company has taken unsecured loan from the parent Company M/s Krishna Institute Of Medical Sciences Limited which carries interest of

12% per annum ( 31 March 2020 : 12% per annum).Refer 2.26 for the related party balances.
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As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

2.12 Other financial liabilitics (at amortised cost)
(a) Non-current
Capital creditors 230 -
2.30 -

(b) Current

Current maturity of long term debts (refer note 2.11) 6329 34.13
Capital creditors 1.49 4590
Employee related liabilities 1.38 752
Security deposits 0.02 0.02
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 5.14 7.45
Total 71.32 95.02

2.13 Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note. 2.25) 0.65 0.71
Total 0.65 0.71

2.14 Short-term borrowings (at amortised cost)

Secured

Working capital loans from banks (refer note i} 28.93 20.52
Unsecured

Loans from related parties [refer note ii] . 31.90
Total 28.93 52.42
Notes

i) Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by way of equitable mortgage on the property situated at Plot Nos 27 & 28 (part) in Sy.No.931/J1B
931/J2B,931/15B,931/KIB and 931/K3 of kallurJohrapuram Road,Kurnool and first and exclusive first charge on movable and
immovable assest and current assest of the Company. Further, the loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by Krishna Institute of
Medical Sciences Limited. The loan carries an interest rate of 1Y MCLR+ 1.30% (spread) per annuin.

iii) Unsecured loan taken from other directors and does not carry any interest

2.15 Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 2.29) 0.86 0.13
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 81.41 59.36
Total 82.27 59.49

The above includes payable to related parties. For details refer note 2.26.
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms

2.16 Short term provisions

Provision for employee benelfits

Compensated absences 3.36 1.79
Total 3.36 1.79

2.17 Other liabilities

Current

Statutory dues payable 3.07 411
Contract liabilities (refer note 2.33) 2.43 3.02
Total 5.50 7.13
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For the vear ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

2.18 Revenue from operations

Revenue from contract with customers (Refer note 2.32)
Income from hospital services
Income from sale of phannacy

Total revenue from operations

2.19 Other income
Interest income on:
- fixed deposits
- income-tax refunds
Renlal income {refer note 2.34)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Miscellaneous income

362.64 303.10

15795 105.08

520.59 408.18
0.12 0.00
0.15 0.06
0.79 0.81
0.01
2.80 0.77
3.87 .64

Total




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: US5110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements fot the year ended 31 March 2021

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.20

2.21

222

Increase in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments

Opening stock
Less: Closing stock
Total

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 2 25)
Staff welfare expenses

Total

Finance cost

Interest expense on

- term loans

- other loans

- Loan from related partics
Guarantee commission expense
Others

Total

Other expenses

Consultancy charges
House keeping expenses
Power and fuel
Catering and patient welfare expenses
Rent (refer note 2.34)
Tests and investigations
Repairs and maintenance:
- Medical /Non medical equipment
- Hospital building and others
Printing and stationery
Audit fee (refer note below)
Legal and professional charges
Rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Advertisement and publicity
Communication cost
Trade receivable written off
Expected credit loss for trade receivables
Insurance
Subscription and membership fees
Bank charges
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Note: Payment to auditors {excluding applicable taxes)

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the vear ended
31 March 2020

9.83 467
(11.96) 9.83)
2.13) (5.16)
9870 77.06
8.56 747
1.69 291
108.95 87.44
40.35 31.61
2.76 698
8.88 452
1.73 1.47
4.15 5.89
57.87 50.47
15491 142.56
3252 28.19
16.88 15.02
4385 4385
4.75 0.99
2.55 2.92
3.50 4.00
6.90 5.13
2.60 561
0.60 0.60
1.82 228
1.30 221
3.38 4.11
8.98 18.92
1.00 1.08
2.30 E
5.04 323
0.51 018
0.90 0.80
1.30 225
0.31 1.23
256.90 246.16

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Muarch 2021

For the year ended
A1 Mareh 2020

Statuiory audir fee

1,640

0.00 |
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2.24

Contingent liabilities and commitments
(a) Contingent liabilities

On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining
which components of their employee's compensation are subject to statutory withholding obligations, and matching employer contribution
obligations, for Provident Fund contributions under Indian law. There are interpretative issues relating to the restrospective applicability of
the judgement. However, from the date of order, the Company has complied with the aforesaid Supreme court's judgement. The Company
will evaluate the same and update its position for earlier years, if any on receiving further clarity on the subject.

(b) Commitments

Particulars As at As at
: = 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 54.15 53.86

for (net of advances)
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2.25 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company operate post-cmployment defined benelit plan that piovides giatuity. The giatuily plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five yeas of continuous
senices, Lo receive one-hall month's salary fo1 cach year of completed serices al the time of retirement/exit.The gratuity fund is administered by tiust formed for this purpose
and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India The Company's abligation in 1espect of giatuity plan, which is a defined benefil plan is provided tor based on actuarial
valuation canied out by an independent actuary using the projected unil credit method. The Company acciues pealuity as per the provisions of the payment of Giatuity

Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date and accordingly the maximum payment is restricted to INR 2

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the

Company’s financial stat ts as at the balance sheet date:
As at As at
Yardi 3
Farticutars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Defined benefit obligations liability 1.86 0.71
Fair value of plan assels 1.21 ]
Net defined benefil liability 0.65 0.71
Total employee benefit liability 0.65 0.71
Non-current 0.65 0.71
Current = .
B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances 1o the closing balances for net defined benefit (assets)/liability and its components.
I) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
. As at As al
Trarticuls

A 31 Mareh 2021 31 Marel 2020
Defined benefit obligation as at | April 0.71
Cunent service cost 1.02 0.95
Interest cost 0.04 0.02
Actuarial (gains)losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- Changes in demographic assumptions 0.17)
- Changes in financial assumptions 0.01 0.07

experience changes 0.08 (0. 161
Defined benefit obligation as at balance sheet date 186 0.71
ii) Reconciliation to fair value of plan assets
Particolars As at Asat

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Flan assets al heginning of the year - -
Comtributions paid into the plan 117
Interest income
Henelits paid -
Return on plan assels 0.04 -
Plun assets at end of the year 1.21 -
Net defined benefit liability 0.65 0.71
C i) Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current service cost 1.02 0.95
Interest on defined benefil obligation / plan assets (net) 0.04 0.02
Net gratuity cost, included in ‘employee benefits' 1.06 0.97
C iR ts recognised in other camprelicnsive income (OC1)

o For the year ended  For the year ended
Fartichtds 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Actuanal gain/ (loss) on net defined benefit obligation (0.09) (.26
Actual return on plan assets less inlerest on plan assets (.04 -
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2.25 Employec bencfits (continued)

(iii)

D Defined benefit obligation
1) Acluaiial assumptions
The following aie the principal aciuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Principal actuarial assumptions As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rale 5.80% 5.85%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%
Moralily rate 0.087% Lo 0.965% 0.087% 10 0.965%
Adlrition rate %10 31% 0% 1031%

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Farticulars As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 Muarch 2024
I'st following year 002 0.0l
Yew 2to 5 years 0.99 032
Year 6 to 9 years 0.96 0.42
Mure than 10 years 11.81 11,34

The average duralion of the defined benefit plan obligation al the end of the reporting period is 6.39 years (31 March 2020: 6.91 years).

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securilies as at the balance sheet dale for the estimated term of the obligations

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into accounts the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant faclors,
Expected rate of return on plan assets: This is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expecled on investment of the fund during the estimated term of
the obligations.

ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant acluarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown
below

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2021 For the year ended 31 March 2020
Increase Decrease Inerease Dicrease

Discount rate (1% movement) .10 0.12 (0.05) L035

Future salary increase (196 tnovenment) .12 (.11 0.05 (0.05)

E Amount of current yeur and previous four years are as follows

. As at As a(
Farticulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation 1.86 0.71
(Surplusy deficit in the plan 1.86 0.71

F Defined contribution plan

For the year ¢ndedd  For the year ended

Rarticilans 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss towards
i) Provident fund 542 3.87
2.38 263

1) Empliovee atate insprance

o

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employmen and post-employment benefits received P! ial assenl in September 2020
The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have
not yet been issued. The Company is assessing the impact of the Code and will record any related impact in the period of the Code becomes effective.
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2.26 Related party disclosures

(a) Parties where confrol exists or where significant influence exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the current year or
previous year

Nature of relationship Name of related parties
Key management personnel (KMP) Dr. Sudhakar Gajiala-Managing Direclor
Dircctors Dr. Rafig Ahmed Kodumuru-Whole time Dirclor
Dr. Venkata Kishore Reddy Sane-Director
Dr. Bollineni Abhinay-Director (w.e.f 01 April 2019)
Dr. Chebrolu Harini-Director (w e.f 01 April 2019)
Dr_A Venkata Setty -Director ( resigned w.e.f31 March 2019)
Relative of Key management personnel (KMP) Dr. Shruthi Vennela-Daughter of Dr Sudhakar Gajjala
Dr. P Kiran Kumar-Son in law of Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala
Dr. Sahithi Teja-Daughter of Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala
Dr. Junaid Ahmed - Son of Dr.Rafig Ahimed Kodumuru
Fellow subsidiaries Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Tconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Holding Company w.e.f. 01 April 2019 Krshna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
(b)  Transactions with related parties
. For the year ended For the year ended|
Particulars
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
i Consultancy charges
Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala 5.26 6.77
Dr. Rafiq Ahmed Kodumuru 7.58 932
Dr. Shruthi Vennela 1.18 081
Dr. P Kiran Kumar 2.70 241
Dr. Junaid Ahimed 0.36 .
Dr. Sahithi Teja - 0.38
ii.  Purchase of pharmacy items
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.02 -
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 6.57 0.39
iii.  Sale of pharmacy items
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.19 -
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.19 -
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 0.83 0.30
iv. Repayment of unsecured loan
Dr A. Venkata Setty 11.00
Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala 20.90 -
Krnshna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 76.90 40.00
v. Loan received
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 105.00 87.50
vi. Interest paid
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 10.67 -
vii. Commission expense on corporate guarantees
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 1.73 147
viii. Interest on unsecured loan
Krshna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 8.88 4.52
ix. Corporate guarantee received
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited - 530.00
X. Prepaid guarantee commission
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited - 12.53
xi. Issue of equity share capital
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited - 94.22
xii. Tests and Investigation
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited - 1.74
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2.26 Related party disclosures (continued)

(¢} The balances received from and payable to related parties

Particulars As at As al
rednar 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
i Consultancy charges payable
Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala 0.69 045
Dr. Rafiq Ahmed Kodumuru 0.79 0.44
Dr. Shruthi Vennela 0.09 0.09
Dr. P Kiran Kumar 023 0.23
Dr. Junaid Ahmed 0.03 -
ii.  Unsecured loans payable
Dr.A Venkata Setty = 11.00
Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala 20.90
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 75.60 47.50
iii. Interest accrued
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 1.59 4.07
iv. Trade payables
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 091 122
v.  Corporate guarantee received
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 530.00 530.00
vi. Prepaid guarantee commission
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 932 11.06

(d) For certain loan availed by the Company, Directors of the Company have given personal guarantee. Refer note 2.11 and 2.14 for details on the
saime.

Terms and conditions:

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions, Outstanding balances at the year
end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables
or payables. For the above year ended, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This
assessment is undertaken on a forward-looking basis at each reporting period end through examining the historical information and financial position
of the related party that is adjusted to reflect current conditions of market in which the related party operates as well as information about forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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2.27 Earnings per share(EPS)

Particulars

31 March 2021

As at

As al
31 March 2020

Earnings
Net loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders

Shares
Number shares at the beginning of the year
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - used in
calculating diluted EPS

Eamings/ (loss) per share of par value INR 10-Basic (INR)
Eamings/ (loss) per share of par value INR 10-Diluted (INR)

(51.79)

6,000,000
6,000,000

6,000,000

6,000,000

(8.63)
(R.63)

(93.26)

6,000,000
6,000,000

6,000,000

6,000,000

(15.54)
(15.54)

There are no potentially dilutive equity shares.
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2.28 Segment information
The Managing Dircctor of the Company takes decision in 1espect of allocation of resources and assesses the peiformance basis the report/ information
provided by functional heads and are thus considered to be Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Based on the Company's business model. medical and healthcare services have been considered as a single business segment for the purpose of making
decision on allocation of resources and assessing its performance. Accordingly, there are no separale reportable scgments in accordance with the requirements
of Ind AS 108 *Opcrating segment’ and hence, there are no additional disclosures (o be provided other than those already provided in the Financial
Statements Presently, the Company’s operations are predominantly confined in India There are no individual customer contributing more than 10% of
Company's total revenue. All non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-cmployment benefit assets of the Company are
located in India

2.29 Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2021 has been made in the financial statements based on
information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance
with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (1he MSMED Act) 1s not expected to be material. The Company has
not received any claim for interest from any supplier.

X As at As al
particulars 31 March 2021] 31 March 2020
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at end of the year
- Principal 0.86 0.13

- Interest

The amounl of inlerest paid by the buyer in termns of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid bul
beyond the appointed day during the year) bul without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act; - =

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounling year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a
deduclible expenditure under the MSMED act.
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230 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future
development of (he business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the ‘Gearing'
ratio.

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all
components of equity excluding capital contribution.

Tlhie Company’s Gearmp fulio as of 311 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 was as folliws:

Particulary As at As at
31 Murch 2021 31 March 2020
Tutal borrowings 603.99 512.08
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1.53 47
Adjusted net debt 60246 S11.61
Total equity (179.43) (127 60)
Gearing ratio -336%, -401"%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial co ttached to the i bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in
the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2020.
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2.31 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values

The management assessed that loans, trade receivables. cash and cash equivalents, other financial assels, borrowings. trade payables and other financial

liabilities approximate their carrying amounts as fair value

As at 31 March 2021 Carrying Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Trade receivables 48.75 4875

Cash and cash equivalents 1.53 153

Loans 5.07 5.07

Other financial assets 5.38 5.38
Total 60.73 60.73 level 3
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Borrowings 603.99 603.99

Trade payables 8227 82.27

Other financial liabilities 10.33 10.33
Tutul 696.59 67659
As at 31 March 2020 Carrying Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Trade receivables 21.25 21.25

Cash and cash equivalents 0.47 0.47

Loans 3.26 3.26

Other financial assets 221 2.21
Total 27.19 27.19 level 3
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Borrowings 512.08 512.08

Trade payables 59.49 59.49

Other financial liabilities 60.89 60.89
Total 632.46 632.46

Note for financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost:

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other financials assets, other financial liabilities (excluding current maturities), short term
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to

The fair values for loans were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value
hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobersvable inputs including counterparty credit risk,

The fair values of non-current borrowings (including current maturities) are based on discounted cash flowes using a current borrowing rate. They are

classified as level 3 fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs including own credit risk
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2.31 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The managemenl assessed that loans. trade receivables, cash and cash equiv alents, other financial assels, boriowings, tiade payables and other financial
Liabilities approximale their carrying amounts as fait value

B. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose il to a variety of financial risks credit risk. market nisk and hiquidity nisk

(i) Risk management framework
The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and o ersighl of the Company's risk managemen! fiamework

The Company’s risk management policies are eslablished to 1dently and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropniale nisk lumts and
controls ta monitor risks and adherence Lo limits. Risk management pelicies and systems are reviewed regularly to 1eflect changes in market conditions
and Company's aclivities. The Company, through its (raining and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
conlrol enviromment in which all the employees understand their roles and obligations

The Company's Board of Direclors oversees how management monitors campliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and
reviews the adequacy of risk management fiamework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of Diteclors is assisted in its oversight
role by the internal audit. Internat audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the resulls of which are
reported to the Board of Directors

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that (he counterparly will nol meet ils obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The
credit risk arises principally from ils operaling aclivities (primarily trade 1eceivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial inslitutions and other financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial assels represent the maximum credit risk exposure

Credil risk is controlled by analysing credit limils 10 whoin credit has been granted afler obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The cotlection fiom
the (rade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by (he receivables leam.

The Company eslablishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate ol expected losses in respecl of trade and other receivables based on
the past and the recent collection trend- The maximum exposure (o credil risk as al reporting dale is primarily from trade receivables amounting to INR
57.58 as on 31 March 202] (31 March 2020: INR 25.03). The movement in allowance for credil loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the
year was as [ollows:

As at As at
Allowance for credit losses A1 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Ohpening balance 370 (.35
Credit loss added 5.04 323
losing: Balance B.83 3.79
Trade receivable write off not routed through (he above movement 230 -

The Group uses a provision matrix o delermine the expected ciedit loss on the portfolio of ils trade receivables and contract assels. The provision matrix
is based on its historically observed defaull rales over the expecled life of the trade receivables and contract assets and is adjusted for forward looking
eslimates. The expecled credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due in the provision matrix. Sel oul below is the
information about the credit risk exposure of the Group’s trade receivables and conlract asset using provision matrix

Giross rade
recedvables and
CONtract asscts

For the year ended 31 March 2021 731 49.14 641 62.85
For the year ended 31 March 2020 15.58 7.43 4.13 27.13

0-180 days due past  More than 180 days

Not past due due date past due date

Customer Concentration
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2021 and year ended 31 March 2020
Therefore Lhe cuslomer concentration risk is limiled due (o the large and unrelated customer base.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Group generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by internalional and domestic credil raling agencies.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounler difficully in meeling the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are setiled by
delivering cash or another financial asset The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is lo ensure, as far as possible, thal it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage lo
the Company’s repultation

The lable below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual malurities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2021:

Particulars Carrying Value  Less than | year 1-5years More than § years Total
Non cuirent borrowings* 511.77 - 409.50 103.17 512.68
Short term borrowing 28.93 28.93 - - 2893
Trade payables 8227 82.27 - 8227
Other financial liabilities 73.62 71.32 230 73.62
Total 696.59 182.52 411.80 103.17 697.50

*excluding currenl maturilies

The table below provades details regarding the undiscounted coptraciual matimities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2020:

Particulars Carrying Value  Less than 1 year 1-5years More than 5 years Total
Non curren( borrowings* 42553 - 32809 98.67 426.76
Short term borrowing 5242 52.42 - - 5242
Trade payables 59.49 59.49 - 59.49
Other financial liabilities 95.02 95.02 - - 95.02
Total 632.46 206.93 328.09 98.67 633.69

*excluding cunent maturities

ariier

The Company has secured loans fiom bank that contain loan covenants. A fulure breach of covenant may require the Company to repay lhe,L-_'m;l_g
than indicated in the above lable pr—————
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2.31 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

(iv) Market risk

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars Asat As at
_ B 3 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
Narianle rte bormow ings meluding curent matunies aod shor temm borrow s 538,34 43168
(b) Cash flow sensitivity analysis
Equity, net of tax

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 31

31 March 2021 March 2020
Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR 528 4.33
| "o decrease in MCLR (5 70%) (+33)

The interes! ralc sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans and working capital loans from banks.

{v) Currency risk

The Company is not exposed to currency risk,
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2.31 Income-tax
a. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended’ For the yc;ullllul

31 March 20200 31 March 2020
Deferred tax altribulable Lo temporary dilferences 0.0} (0.07)
Tax expenses for the year 0.01 (0.07)

b. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2021
Tax (expense)/

benefit Net of tax

Before tax

For the year ended 31 March 2020
Tax (expense)/

|
benefit Net of tax

Before tax

Re-measurement on defined benefit plans (0.05) 0.01 (0.04)

0.26 (0.07) 0.19

c. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year vndeid  For the year endod
M March 2021 31 March 20121

Profit betire tax

Enavteid tax rates

I'% expense at enacted rates

Tux effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating taxable income
Defeimal tax asset not recognised on various items (nel)*

(51.78) (73:33)
27.82% 27.81%
(14.41) (23.90)

14.42 25.89
0.0l (10,007}

d. Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities

il

(1) Deferred tax assets and labilities ave aterit to the folluwing

Particulars

As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Deferred tax asset*

Provision for doubtful receivables
Piovision for employee benefits
Business loss

Total deferred tax asset

Deferred tax liability

Property, plant and equipment (liability)
Total deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liability/asset (net)

2.30 0.98
1.04 0.65
2421 2121
27.55 22.84
27.55 22.84

27.55 22.84

*Tax loss, unabsorbed depireciation carry-forward and others for which no deferred tax assets were recorded amounting to Rs. 20.65 (31 March 2020: Rs. 7.5)
(it} Movement in temporary differences
riiculars Provision for doubtful Provision for Business loss Property, plant and Total
receivables employee equipment (liability)
benelits
Balance as at | April 2619 014 - 1492 [ 13.00) -
Recongnised in profit or loss during 2019-20 0.84 0.72 6.29 (7.78) 007
Recognised in OC1 during 20019-20 - (0.07) a S (087
Balanee as at 31 March 2020 .98 0.65 11.21 (22.84) -
Recongnized in profit or loss during 2020-21 1:32 0.38 3.00 4.71) ol
Revopnised in OCH during 2020-21 - 0.01 = = .ol
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2.30 L 24.21 (27.55) -
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2.32 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended  For the ycar ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2021 March 2020
Income from hospital services 362.64 303.10
Income from pharmacy 157.95 105.08
Total revenue from contracts with customers 520.59 408.19

India 520.59 408.19
Outside India :

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred over time 362.64 303.10
Goods transferred at a point of time 157.95 105.08
Total revenue from contracts with customers 520.59 408.19

Reconciliation of revenue recopnised with the contracted price is as follows:

Contract price 557.67 440.80
Less: Discounts and disallowances (37.08) (32.61)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 520.59 408.19

Contract balances

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Trade receivables 48.75 21.25
Contract assets 5.27 2.11
Contract linhilities 243 3.02

Contract liabilities: During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has recognised revenue of Rs. 3.02 from advance receivied
from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2020. During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the company has recognised revenue of Rs.Nil
from advance receivied from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2019.

Contract asset: During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the company has transferred Rs. 2.11 of contract assets as at 31 March 2020 to
trade receivables on completion of perfonmance obligation, During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the company has transferred
Rs. Nil of contract assets as at 31 March 2019 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation

2.33 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivalive contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

2.34 Lease

Operating leases in the capacity of lessee

The Company has residential premises under cancellable operating leases. The Company intends to renew such lease in the normal course of
business. Total rental expenses under cancellable operating lease amounted to Rs. 4.75 ( previous year 31 March 2020 Rs. 0.99). The same are
grouped under other expenses in the standalone statement of profit and loss
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235 Globa) Heulth Parmdemlc
Mic outbreak of COVIN-IY in many cowntries has brought abaa distugions w busincises around the world aml wrcertanly b the plobal ceonomy The

Company is <Jusely manitoring the impact of the pandemic on alf aspects of 10°0s business, including how it will impaci its emplovees. vewdors and business
partiers The Company based on the infornation aveilable o dale, bl intermal and exsemal comsidered U uncenainiy elating io the COVI-1Y pandemic in
asseasing its impact Bused on (he current ¢stimates, 4l Company expects ta folly recover We carmying amount of asscte, aml does nat furssee angy material
adverse impact oa ity apeiations  As the ouibreak continges 10 evolye, Gre Company wil comtinue 15 closely numitor any material changes te futis coonontic

condilivn

2.36 Significant events aller the veperting period

There wéne o signilicant adjusting even(s that vecuried subsequent (o the reponing period.
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